
 
Find out more online: 
www.worcestershire.gov.uk 

 
 

This document can be provided in alternative formats such as Large Print, an audio recording or 
Braille; it can also be emailed as a Microsoft Word attachment. Please contact Democratic 

Services on telephone number 01905 843579 or by emailing 
democraticServices@worcestershire.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Worcestershire County Council 

 
 

Agenda 
Standing Advisory Council on 
Religious Education 
 
Thursday, 15 October 2020, 2.00 pm 
Online only 
 
 
 
Notes:  
Due to the current Covid-19 pandemic Worcestershire County Council will be holding this  
meeting in accordance with the relevant legislative arrangements for remote meetings of a  
local authority. For more information please refer to: Local Authorities and Police and Crime  
Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings)  
(England and Wales) Regulations 2020.  
Please note that this meeting will be conducted remotely by videoconferencing between  
invited participants. 
The Agenda papers and background papers can be accessed electronically on the Council’s  
website.  

 
 
 
 
 

mailto:democraticServices@worcestershire.gov.uk


 

DISCLOSING INTERESTS 
 

There are now 2 types of interests: 
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests' 

 

WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)? 
 

 Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain  

 Sponsorship by a 3rd party of your member or election expenses 

 Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where 
you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares 

 Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer) 

 Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued 
share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire. 

 
      NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you 
 
WHAT MUST I DO WITH A DPI? 

 Register it within 28 days and  

 Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting  
- you must not participate and you must withdraw. 

      NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI 
 

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'? 

 No need to register them but 

 You must declare them at a particular meeting where: 
  You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have  

a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion. 
 
WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY? 
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the 
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest. 
 
DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF I HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI? 

Not normally. You must withdraw only if it: 

 affects your pecuniary interests OR  
relates to a planning or regulatory matter 

 AND it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 
 
DON'T FORGET 

 If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence 
and nature – 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient    

 Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda  
- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little 

 Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be 
referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000 
and disqualification up to 5 years 

  Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases. 
 
Simon Mallinson Head of Legal and Democratic Services July 2012       WCC/SPM summary/f 



 

Agenda produced and published by Assistant Director for Legal and Governance, County Hall, Spetchley 
Road, Worcester WR5 2NP 
 
To obtain further information or a copy of this agenda contact Kate Griffiths, Committee Officer on 01905 
846630, KGriffiths@Worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website.  
 
Date of Issue: Wednesday, 7 October 2020 

 
 

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 
Thursday, 15 October 2020, 2.00 pm, Online only 
 
Membership:   

 
Group A (Representatives of Christian and other faiths) 
Mr G Bounds (Free Church Representative), Ade Couper (Quaker Representative), 
Mrs T Khawaja (Muslim Representative), Mr J Loyal (Sikh Representative), Mrs C Parker 
(Methodist Representative), Dr Y Stollard (Jewish Representative) and Mrs L Thorne (Ba'hai 
Representative) 
 
Group B (Church of England Representatives) 
Kate Cope (Church of England), Danielle Evans (Church of England) and Mrs T Lister (Church 
of England) 
 
 
Group C (Representatives of Recognised Teachers Associations) 
Charlotte Betteridge (NASUWT) and Mr C Giles (Teacher Representative)  
 
Group D (Elected representatives of the Local Authority) 
Mr M E Jenkins (Worcestershire County Council), Mr R C Lunn (Worcestershire County 
Council) and Dr K A Pollock (Worcestershire County Council) 
 
Co-opted Representatives 
Ms E Hill (University of Worcester) 
 

Agenda 
 

Item No Subject Page No 
 

1  Position of Chairman and Membership 
 

 

2  Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 
 

 

3  Confirmation of the Minutes 
 

1 - 6 

4  Syllabus launch and encouraging schools to register for access to 
syllabus 
 

7 - 10 

5  Local NATRE Groups in Worcestershire and West Midlands 
 

 

6  Future Plans 
To discuss a SACRE development plan and a school survey. 

 



Item No Subject Page No 
 

 

7  National RE Update 
 

11 - 16 

8  How Schools will celebrate Christmas with current restrictions 
 

 

9  The Viability of a Twitter Account for SACRE 
 

 

10  Feedback from Members 
 

 

11  Any Other Business 
 

 

12  Future Meeting Dates 
Meetings 2021 
 

 Wednesday 24 February 2021 

 Thursday 17 June 2021 

 Thursday 14 October 2021 
 
All at 2pm. Locations to be advised. 
 

 

 



 
 

 
Date of Issue: <date>  

 
 Page No.   
 

1 

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 
Monday, 10 February 2020, County Hall, Worcester - 2.00 pm 
 
 Minutes  

Present:  Mr Chris Giles (Chairman), Mr Graham Bounds, Ms Kate 
Cope, Mr Ade Couper, Ms Danielle Evans, Mr Matthew 
Jenkins, Mrs Tasnim Khawaja, Mrs Tracy Lister, Mr 
Jatinder Loyal, Mrs Christine Parker, Mr Ken Pollock, Dr 
Yvonne Stollard and Mrs Lindsay Thorne. 
 
 

Also attended: Mr S Pett, RE Today - Adviser to SACRE 
 

  

679  Apologies for 
Absence and 
Substitutions 
 

Apologies had been received from Robin Lunn and Ellie 
Hill. 
Rebecca Davidge attended for Ellie Hill. 
 

680  Confirmation of 
the Minutes 
 

Jatinderpal Loyal requested that the word ‘ceremonial’ be 
removed from paragraph 2 on page 2 of the minutes. 
 
Subject to the one change the minutes were agreed to be 
a correct record of the meeting and were signed by the 
Chairman. 
 

681  Welcome to 
New Members 
 

The Chairman welcomed Ade Couper, to SACRE. Ade 
was a Quaker and would join Group A. Ade explained 
that there had been Quakers for around three and a half 
centuries and were one of the non-conformist groups 
which had arisen around the time of the Civil War. The 
Quakers wished to promote peace and had won a Nobel 
Peace Prize. They worked to stop the arms race and 
climate change and worked to improve equality. The 
Quakers worked nationally and locally by going into 
schools and other community settings and had 
representatives on the Interfaith Forum. 
 
Danielle Evans was also welcomed to the meeting as 
one of the new Church of England representatives; she 
was a teacher at Wolverley Secondary School. 
 

682  Agreed 
Syllabus 
Review 
 

SACRE had voted at its last meeting to adopt the Model 
B syllabus from September 2020. The forewords were 
currently being written and the introduction to the new 
Syllabus explained how it linked to the last syllabus. 
There was still scope for local pictures to be used in the 
Worcestershire version of the syllabus so SACRE 
members were asked to send pictures of local places of 

Page 1



 
 

 
 Page No.   
 

2 

worship to Stephen Pett by 20 March. 
 

683  Launch 
Conference(s) 
 

The Launch Conference for the new Syllabus had been 
organised for 1 June and would be held at Sixways 
Stadium in Worcester. Teachers who attended the 
conference would be given access to information which 
could be downloaded for future use and a workbook 
would be provided. Different workshops would be held 
which would be relevant to different age groups. The 
Conference would explain how the new syllabus would 
meet the requirements of the Ofsted framework.  
 
A discussion was held over the merits of holding a joint 
primary and secondary conference or splitting the 
conference. SACRE members felt it would be more 
useful to have a joint conference as it would allow 
teachers of different phases to understand the full 
syllabus and what would be taught at different stages. 
The conference would be useful for all teachers to attend 
as the new syllabus was a substantial change to the 
current one. The new syllabus gave more emphasis to 
systematic study before the religions were compared 
meaning it would be clearer for pupils.  
 
The conference would be a valuable networking 
opportunity as well as giving teachers an introduction to 
the syllabus and providing support materials. 
 
It was clarified that the new syllabus had been written by 
RE Today who had worked with Faith Groups meaning 
that Worcestershire was buying an ‘off the shelf version’ 
this time rather than being involved in the writing of the 
syllabus as it had been with the first version. SACRE 
would not need to contribute to the cost of the launch 
conference as it was being organised by RE Today and 
paid for by the delegate fees. 
 
 

684  Continuing 
Professional 
Development 
 

Chris Giles reported that a fantastic regional conference 
had been held in Birmingham. The feedback from 
attendees had been positive and he thanked Dr Stollard 
and Jatinder Loyal for attending. Jatinder agreed that it 
had been well attended and the market stalls had been 
informative and useful for new teachers. It was proposed 
that a similar system of a market place of different faiths 
could be used at the Syllabus Launch. 
 
Rebecca Davidge reported that bursaries were available 
for teacher training and subject knowledge enhancement 
courses in RE at Worcestershire University. There was 
currently a University of Cambridge initiative at Worcester 

Page 2



 
 

 
 Page No.   
 

3 

Sixth Form to encourage students studying sociology and 
philosophy to go on to study religious education. 
 
The teachers Hubs in Worcestershire were continuing to 
meet with one in Malvern, one for secondary teachers 
and the Rivers MAT. 
 
There would be a conference at the University of 
Worcester on 22 June for students studying GCSE RE.  
 

685  Information 
from Schools 
 

The GCSE results for Worcestershire had been good 
even though the overall numbers taking the exam had 
fallen. The numbers taking A levels had fallen but most 
schools needed to have a minimum number of pupils 
before they could run an RE course. 
 
It was a requirement that all schools taught RE but some 
of them only taught it through PSHE. One SACRE 
member felt that pupils needed to be shown that an RE A 
level could be helpful in a range of careers. It was 
acknowledged that some parents also needed to have 
their perceptions of RE challenged so they would be 
more likely to support their child if they showed an 
interest in choosing to study RE. 
 
Two secondary schools had been sent letters from 
SACRE asking what RE was being taught in their 
schools; one had responded that RE was taught through 
their life studies course and the Head Teacher wished to 
attend the launch of the new syllabus on 1 June; and 
further attempts would be made to contact the other 
school which had not responded.  
[NOTE: following the meeting the school did respond with 
information on how the school taught RE] 
 
 

686  National News 
Update 
 

Stephen Pett explained that lots of schools appeared to 
be struggling with the new Ofsted requirements and that 
during inspections they were being asked for things that 
had not previously been part of inspections. Inspectors 
were now looking in depth at up to six subjects in 
secondary schools and the subjects could include RE. 
Some schools which began teaching GCSE RE before 
year 10 were being rated as ‘requires improvement’ and 
schools were being told that they did not look at subjects 
in sufficient depth and that content was being rushed. 
They needed all courses to be similar in breadth and 
ambition. The teaching members of SACRE confirmed 
that subject leaders were expected to take ownership of 
their subjects and raise standards. Schools which had 
previously been rated outstanding and would not have 

Page 3



 
 

 
 Page No.   
 

4 

received inspections were now being re-visited. 
 
There had been a challenge against a school in 
Oxfordshire about the duty for collective worship – an out 
of court settlement had been reached. 
 
In Wales it had been proposed that parent’s right to 
withdraw their children from collective worship should be 
withdrawn. According to EU regulations that would violate 
the rights of parents. 
 
The NASACRE 2020 Conference will take place on 18 
May in London. 
 

687  Feedback from 
Members 
 

Dr Stollard  

 Heartstone Story Circles was a Project which 
aimed to address racism and xenophobia in a 
unique way. 400 schools in the country were 
involved, including Parkside in Worcestershire, 
and it was supported by Government and the 
police. In some areas it was used as part of 
Prevent. The project used stories to generate 
discussions, bring people together and reduce 
isolation. SACRE members were asked to 
consider how they could support the project and it 
was suggested that details could be passed to 
teachers who attended the Syllabus Launch 
conference on 1 June ready for the project to start 
in the autumn. 

 As the Jewish rep on Worcestershire SACRE, Dr 
Stollard attended Buckingham Palace in 
December for a reception for the Jewish 
Community. 

 Holland House was hosting an event on 24 March 
for Hindus and Buddhists – Opening Eyes to Each 
Other.  

 
Jatinder Loyal  

 Faith leaders had been invited to the World 
Economic Forum to discuss working for safer 
communities. 

 The EcoSikh project planted trees wherever 
possible. The last big planting of trees took place 
in Coventry. 

 Managing Climate change was discussed at the 
United Nations 

 Sikh Free Kitchens worked towards ending world 
hunger. 

 
Lindsay Thorne  

 On 28 June there would be a Faiths Festival at 

Page 4



 
 

 
 Page No.   
 

5 

Holland House. 
 
Tracey Lister 

 Year 6 at her school were working on the Global 
Neighbours accreditation scheme organised by 
Christian Aid. 
 

Tasnim Khawaja 

 The Bromsgrove and Redditch Welcomes 
Refugees project had been successful in helping 
refugees settle in the area and now two people, 
originally from Syria were going into schools to 
speak of their experiences. 

 

688  Future Meeting 
Dates 
 

DATES 2020 
Wednesday 10 June 2020 
Thursday 15 October 2020 
 

 
 
 
 The meeting ended at 3.50pm 
 
 
 
 
 Chairman ……………………………………………. 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Worcestershire RE Conference 2021: implementing the new syllabus 

Training delivered by: 
Fiona Moss 

Stephen Pett 

Making good progress in RE: 
belief, impact, connections 
The new syllabus is essential for developing RE, supporting and resourcing 
schools to provide a coherent, sequenced RE curriculum, enabling pupils to 
recall their learning and make good progress.  

The syllabus was launched online in summer 2020. This training conference 
gives you an opportunity to explore it further, receive some practical 
classroom ideas for implementing it, and ask questions.   

© NATRE Spirited Arts Alyssa (10) Journey of Faith

Online via Zoom 

Fee per school: 

£45 
Sign up and use as school or department CPD.

Implementing the new

Worcestershire 
Agreed Syllabus for RE

Thursday 14th January 2021 
1.00pm-5.00pm

Page 7



Worcestershire RE Conference 2021: implementing the new syllabus 

Making good progress in RE: belief, impact, connections 

Thursday 14th January
1.00pm-5.00pm Online via Zoom 

This conference will explore the new Worcestershire Agreed Syllabus for RE. It will provide an opportunity to 
see the changes to the current syllabus and explore how it helps teachers in planning and delivering creative 
and effective RE, to inspire their pupils as well as meet the challenge of the new OFSTED Framework. Sessions 
will outline the wider context for RE and provide some inspiring and practical ideas for the classroom.  There 
will be plenty of resources and ideas to take away and use in the classroom.  

Electronic copies of all resources used will be available to download afterwards.  

Who is it for?  
The conference is aimed at teachers of RE from first, primary, middle, secondary and high schools, including 
subject leaders and head teachers. It will also be valuable for governors to find out about and explore best 
practice in RE.   

Aims:   
• To introduce the revised Worcestershire Agreed Syllabus for RE, with its increased clarity, rigour and

inspiring support materials

• To provide practical support and guidance to schools in planning creative, challenging, thoughtful RE to

increase pupils’ knowledge and understanding, as well as their personal development

• To give teachers confidence when planning and delivering great RE, and in dealing with core concepts in

religions, deepening subject knowledge and skills in RE

• To model examples of thoughtful RE, challenging all pupils and promoting deeper thinking

Online: the conference will be via Zoom. We will make it as interactive as possible. 

Booking details attached. Please email to mark@retoday.org.uk  
or post to RE Today Services, 5/6 Imperial Court, 12 Sovereign Road, Birmingham, B30 3FH 

1.00-2.15 Session 1: The intent of the new Agreed Syllabus: belief, impact, connections  
A practical guide to the new syllabus: what’s the same, what’s different, what impact will it have on 
pupils, and how to teach it.  

2.30-3.45 Session 2: Implementing the Agreed Syllabus 
Examples of excellent teaching and learning to exemplify the syllabus approach.  
We will start with ideas for middle schools/upper primary, before splitting halfway through into 
primary and secondary groups for the rest of the afternoon.  

4.00-5.00 Session 3: Impact: teaching and learning, achievement and assessment 
This session will explore more teaching and learning ideas, connecting them with methods of assessment, 
providing examples of ways to enable pupils to make good progress in RE. 

Page 8

mailto:mark@retoday.org.uk


Worcestershire Agreed Syllabus online launch conference 2021

Send to:  RE Today Services, 5/6 Imperial Court, 12 Sovereign Road, Birmingham, B30 3FH 
Tel: 0121 458 3313   
Email to: Mark Clarke mark@retoday.org.uk 

Booking form:  
Worcestershire RE Agreed Syllabus implementation conference

Fee: £45 per school
ONLINE Thursday 14th January 1.00-5.00pm

I would like to book for the Worcs syllabus implementation conference. 

I understand that the course is online via Zoom. 

Full Name(s): 

School Name: 

School Address: 

  Postcode: 

Telephone: 

Email address: 

Payment details: 

Please invoice the school 

Invoice/ Credit Card billing address: 

Postcode: 

  I enclose a cheque, payable to RE Today Services 

  I will pay by Visa, Mastercard or Switch 

Card number: 

Expiry Date: Start Date: 

Security code (last 3 numbers on signature strip) Issue  no. (Switch) 

Signature: 

Date: 

Page 9

mailto:mark@retoday.org.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Worcestershire SACRE National Update: Oct 2020 
 

NATRE’s Spirited Arts competition: results and next year’s competition 
The competition has attracted record entries this year – it was a popular lockdown activity set by hundreds 
of teachers, and the YouTube lesson to accompany it was viewed about 14,000 times. Many of our schools 
have taken an interest in this competition. There are over 30.000 entrants. 
Here is one of the inspiring entries, the best of which can be viewed at www.natre.org.uk/spiritedarts 

 

This piece is called The Hourglass. I wanted to 
show a contrast between what the earth was 
like, and what it was now without a too obvious 
division of the page. I did not base it on a 
particular religion, but on the overall belief that 
God is watching over us, holding our hourglass 
with his hand. I got my inspiration from a picture 
of an hourglass with the mountains, the forests, 
all flowing down into the other side of the 
hourglass, where it is all rubbish and pollution. 
I’ve switched the concept subtly. Instead of the 
wonderful nature flowing and rotting into trash, I 
decided that it would be the other way round: 
the black tar that shows our pollution is flowing 
and dark drops are contaminating the Bright 
nature on the other side of the hourglass, and 
the animals are watching in vain. The whole 
hourglass is cracking. I wanted to show that if 
one system breaks, then, like the Buddhists say, 
the whole interconnected and interdependent 
community will fall. I have put pictures of the 
opposing sides on either end of the hourglass, 
they are examples of the wonderfulness of 
nature, and the heart wrenching truth of what 
we have done with our planet; on the bottom,  
corals, birds, forests, and on the top toxic fumes, 
fossil fuels, plastic, pollution, landfills, and 
deforestation. I hope that when people see this 
piece, they will see God’s good Earth, and realise 
what we are doing to it, and strive to reverse the 
damage before the hourglass breaks.  

Lixuan is 12 
The competition for the next year is being launched and 5 themes are available to schools for them to 
engage and respond creatively.  
Can we, as a SACRE, promote the competition to all our schools? Could we run a local round to the 
competition, to see what creative RE is going on here?  
 
Next year’s closing date is 31st July 2021. 
Themes for the coming year: 

• “We have far more in common with each other than that which divides us.” 

• God’s good earth? 

• Where is God? 

• Healing 

• Inspiring! 
 

 

Page 11

http://www.natre.org.uk/spiritedarts


 
 

Interfaith week 
Inter Faith Week starts on Sunday 8 November and concludes on Sunday 15 November. The Week is a 
great opportunity for pupils to explore inter faith issues and for schools to build relationships with faith, 
belief and inter faith groups in their community. Here are some suggestions for schools for things you 
might want to consider doing this year: 

• Work with your local inter faith group and SACRE to host a special virtual ‘Question Time’ via a social 
media platform 

• Organise an exhibition in your school featuring information and objects about a range of religions 
and beliefs reflecting your local population (this could be virtually available to others) 

• Celebrate the Week on your website, perhaps have a series of short videos where pupils share what 
they have learned in RE 

• Organise a virtual tour of local places of worship to investigate the importance of faith in the lives of 
believers in your community 

• Create an Inter Faith Week poster, artwork or multifaith calendar 

• Host a dialogue about a topic such as ‘shared values’ or how people of different faiths and beliefs 
can live well together at a lunchtime event 

• Make a video of events at your school held for Inter Faith Week For more about Inter Faith Week 
 

Visit https://www.interfaithweek.org/ and if you have specific questions or ideas you’d like to discuss email 
IFN’s Assistant Director at david.hampshire@interfaith.org.uk. 
 
Can those of you that represent religion and belief communities offer your services? 
Can schools be informed about this week- together with the suggestions above? 
 

Anti-racist RE 
NATRE and RE Today, working with the Free Churches Group and Methodist Schools, are launching a project 
to help teachers tackle racism in RE lessons. The project aims to: 

• Enable a team of 60+ black, Asian and minority ethnic teachers of RE and members of different 
communities to articulate perspectives on the contributions of RE to anti-racist education, accessible 
for all teachers of RE 

• Provide challenging and well planned resources, case studies, plans and lessons for teachers of RE in 
both primary and secondary schools to use in RE that challenge and confront racism and are also good 
RE, mounted and free from web platforms hosted both by RE Today and by the Free Churches Group 
and the Methodist Schools. 

• Create a forum for teacher education and development in relation to anti-racist RE, recognising that 
practice in RE in this area is patchy and inconsistent (also online) 

• Disseminate better practice in anti-racist RE widely, using the wide range of contacts and networks 
available to RE today 

Wide partnerships to maximise the impact of the project have been used, including for example with NATRE 
and the Jo Cox Foundation. Teachers can access a planned unit of six topics for primary and of 8 topics for 
secondary RE, including ready to use resources and a wide range of support materials. 
www.natre.org.uk/anti-racist-RE   
 
Can our SACRE publicise this to schools? Would we like to invest some of our budget this year in primary 
and secondary CPD for schools in this area? 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12

https://www.interfaithweek.org/
mailto:david.hampshire@interfaith.org.uk
http://www.natre.org.uk/anti-racist-RE


 
 

GCSE Results 
The number of pupils taking GCSE Religious Studies in England and Wales has remained stable in 2020 
despite ongoing challenges, reflecting the relevance of the subject and its popularity among young people. 

Until this year, there has been a gradual decline in full course RS GCSE entries since a peak in 2016, when 
269,839 entries were recorded in England. Full and short course entries reached a high of 461,795 in 2011 
but declined rapidly as schools in England opted not to enter pupils into the short course following 
Government policy changes, despite a requirement among all schools, including Academies, to provide 
Religious Education to all pupils at all key stages. In Wales however, the short course entries have not 
declined at the same rate and fell by just 3.74% (from 6,198 to 5,966). In England, short course entries fell by 
more than 16%. In general, these figures should be interpreted in the light of government policy – they don’t 
indicate much about the popularity of the subject with students. 

This summer’s figures, however, provide some optimism that the decline may be levelling off. The key 
outcomes for Religious Education in England and Wales at Key Stage 4 in 2020 are as follows: 

• There were 225,719 entries in England and 10,037 in Wales for the full course in GCSE RS, a fall of less 
than 1% from 2019 (227,913 England and 10,129 Wales). 

• There were 18,067 entries in England and 5,966 in Wales for the short course in GCSE RS, a decline of 
16.1% in England and 3.74% in Wales from 2019 (21,530 and 6198 respectively). 

• There were 243,786 entries for GCSE RS (combined short and full courses) in England, a decline of 2.3% 
from 2019 (249,443).  

• Despite a decline since the peak in entries, the number of pupils receiving a full course GCSE in Religious 
Studies in England in 2020 (225,719) is still 32% greater than in 2010 (170,767).  

 

How is this reflected in our area? How should we be engaging with schools about these figures? 

 

Changes in RS examinations for 2021 
Ofqual released their decisions on 3rd August regarding the cohort of students who will be taking their 
GCSE’s, AS or A levels in 2021. There are a few headlines to report. Obviously these decisions could change as 
the response to the pandemic develops but this reflects the current information that schools are working 
with. 
 
1. No change to the assessment arrangements for Religious Studies. 
The report stated that there will be no change to the assessments in Religious Studies for the GCSE (short 
and full course) AS or A level. Thus, students will be assessed in the same manner as previous years. 

Ofqual did recognise that: 
“Many respondents were concerned about covering all the content, given the lost time and difficulty of 
covering it in a normal year. This was raised for most subjects at GCSE, AS and at A level.” 
“Respondents often suggested this could be addressed through question optionality, which was discussed 
further below. In some subjects, for example, GCSE Religious Studies and GCSE English Literature, parallels 
were drawn with GCSE history and respondents urged that similar arrangements were made to enable 
content sampling in their subject.” 

However, Ofqual decided against making changes to Religious Studies. 

2. No decisions have been made about the dates for the examinations. 
No decisions have yet been made with regards to the dates for the examinations for 2021. It is possible that 
July will be included in the timetable to allow for more teaching time. The reason for the delay is because 
Ofqual need to consult with other affected parties before making a decision.  

Page 13



 
 

As of 28.9.20 we are still waiting for an announcement – it is expected imminently. It is proving difficult for 
those undertaking course planning as they don’t know how many teaching weeks to plan for for students in 
Year 11 and Year 13. 

As they reported: 

“While there was support for delaying the exams, to allow more time for teaching, a number of risks and 
issues were highlighted in the responses, including concerns about the likely impact on the dates by which the 
results could then be published. The key decision for Ofqual on the timetable is whether to change our rules 
to allow the exams boards to offer exams in July 2021 as well as in May and June. However, changes to the 
exam timetable are not for Ofqual alone. We will work with DfE, the exam boards, colleagues in Wales and 
Northern Ireland, and higher education to undertake a further analysis of the options the risks and the 
mitigations before taking a decision.” 
 
3.There will be further information on how student outcomes (i.e. grades) are to be protected. 
Ofqual are currently considering how the grades or outcomes of students taking the examinations in 2021 
can be protected. They have said: 

“The Secretary of State has asked us to advise him in the coming months how we might ensure students’ 
outcomes are protected through our approach to grading next year, as we did to protect the interests of 
students who took the reformed qualifications for the first time. Our approach- using statistical predictions to 
guide the first awards of reformed qualifications- worked well to protect the interests of students taking the 
reformed qualifications and we will consider its use next year. We did not consult on proposal for grading in 
summer 2021, but we will provide further information in due course.” 
 
Here is a copy of their statement and decisions document on the changes that will be made. 
 
Other related issues: 
At the end of July, the Department for Education announced that from September all pupils should return to 
school. The guidance sets an expectation that “the curriculum should remain broad and ambitious: all pupils 
continue to be taught a wide range of subjects, maintaining their choices for further study and employment.” 
 
The DfE have advised that when planning for pupils’ return to school in September, subjects should not be 
removed from the curriculum. In relation to Key Stage 3 the guidance states, “the curriculum should also 
remain broad from year 7 to year 9 so that the majority of pupils are taught a full range of subjects over the 
year, including..[..] Religious Education.” Indeed, the suspension of subjects should only occur in “exceptional 
circumstances” and if this occurs, a school must be able to demonstrate that this is “in the best interests of 
these pupils and should be subject to discussion with parents during the Autumn term.” 
 
For key stage 4 and 5 the guidance states that, “the vast majority of pupils in year 10 and 11 are expected to 
continue to study their examination subjects.” A year 11 pupil should only be advised to discontinue a subject 
in “exceptional circumstances”. 
 
The DfE documentation can be consulted here. 
The NATRE summary of the implications of this guidance can be found here. 
Nick Gibb's written answer to a Parliamentary question on this subject can be found here. 
 
Can this information be shared with all Worcestershire secondary schools? 
 

 
 
 

Page 14

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/exams-and-assessments-in-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposed-changes-to-the-assessment-of-gcses-as-and-a-levels-in-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/actions-for-schools-during-the-coronavirus-outbreak/guidance-for-full-opening-schools
https://www.natre.org.uk/uploads/Guidance%20for%20full%20opening-schools%20NATRE%20FINAL.pdf
https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-questions-answers/?house=commons&max=20&member=4682&page=1&questiontype=AllQuestions


 
 

All Schools have a duty to teach RE to all pupils aged 5-18 even in current times 
NATRE was pleased to see that Nick Gibb MP, Minister for schools, has given a clear and fulsome answer to a 
question from Luke Pollard MP regarding schools and RE. 

We note from his answer below that he restates that: 

• State-funded schools in England have a duty to teach religious education to all pupils aged 5 to 18 
years 

• where pupils do not choose Religious Studies as an examination subject, the requirement to teach 
religious education still applies. 

• An agreed syllabus can stipulate that pupils follow an accredited qualification such as GCSE 
 
He also clearly says that in the reopening of schools: 

• Religious education is explicitly stated as one of the subjects that should be taught 
 
The Department’s guidance on full opening of schools sets the expectation that schools teach an ambitious 
and broad curriculum in all subjects from the start of the autumn, but that they use their existing curriculum 
flexibilities within subjects to create time to cover the most important missed content.  

• Religious education is explicitly stated as one of the subjects that should be taught. The guidance 
was published on 2 July and can be found here. 

• The Department’s guidance on religious education is already available for both maintained schools 
and for academies and free schools. The guidance for maintained schools is here. 

• The guidance for academies and free schools here. 

• No additional guidance on this subject is therefore needed. 

• Nick Gibb’s answer to Luke Pollard's Parliamentary question on this subject can be found here. 
 
Can this information be shared with all Worcestershire headteachers and chairs of governors? 
Do school improvement partners or similar know whether this guidance is being followed? Could they find 
out? 
  
 

A reminder re Timing of SATs tests in 2021: Adaptations available for Muslim pupils 
In 2021, Eid-ul-Fitr is likely to begin on the evening of Wednesday 12th May. Given the significance of RE the 
DFE are aware that pupils are likely to be absent from school and so have given advice to schools on how to 
rearrange tests for some or all pupils if deemed necessary. 
 
How can our SACRE and LA make sure schools understands the guidance? 
 
 

Increase in the number of secondary trainees 
The number of trainee teachers for RE is increasing, with the provision for Subject Knowledge Enhancement 
courses proving to be a real help to those entering the profession with degrees in other Humanities subjects. 
While it is good to see this increase, these trainee teachers will need to spend time in schools with good RE 
teachers in order to develop their own practice and become good RE teachers themselves. This year we have 
recruited almost 100 extra trainees. 

Can we let secondary headteachers know that there will be an increase in the pool of RS qualified teachers 
to recruit?  

  

Page 15

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/actions-for-schools-during-the-coronavirus-outbreak/guidance-for-full-opening-schools
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/religious-education-guidance-in-english-schools-non-statutory-guidance-2010
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/re-and-collective-worship-in-academies-and-free-schools/religious-education-re-and-collective-worship-in-academies-and-free-schools
https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-questions-answers/?house=commons&max=20&member=4682&page=1&questiontype=AllQuestions
http://www.natre.org.uk/news/latest-news/number-of-re-trainee-teachers-increases-the-first-time-in-a-decade/


 
 

Materials available for self-isolating pupils, socially distanced RE and any future 
lockdowns 

To help teachers during this difficult time, RE Today is working hard to support NATRE by producing 
resources that ALL teachers can use and share with pupils and parents in order to support with home 
learning and also socially distanced RE in schools. 

If teachers wish to sign up for the updates to inform you of new resources, then please sign up to the mailing 
list on the NATRE website. We have also made further resources available for NATRE members. 

Access resources 
 
 

Strictly RE: Online training for teachers 
Date: 30 & 31 January 2021 (PLUS additional seminars leading up to Strictly!) 
Location: Online 
Full price: £100* (Price includes downloadable handouts and presentations from all sessions). 
EARLY BIRD DISCOUNT! Book before 31 October - only £85! 
Prices start as low as £45 for NATRE members* 
*NATRE members discounts available on top of early bird (Bronze: £20 off, Silver: £30, Gold & Platinum: 
£40). 
Strictly RE is back, this time NATRE will be hosting its national annual conference online to keep you all safe, 
whilst still giving you everything you love about Strictly RE without having to leave your home. 

With 24 seminars, 4 Keynotes, networking and discussion opportunities, Saturday night entertainment, we 
have something for everyone. There’s lots to choose from, and we hope that you will pick and mix from 
across the month and weekend to create a programme that works for you. You do not have to attend a 
seminar at every time slot. 
 
Keynote speakers include Richard Kueh, OFSTED RE subject specialist, Christine Counsell on curriculum 
construction and progression in RE, a panel on worldviews in RE and a panel on Anti- racist RE. 
 
NATRE will be running twilight sessions throughout January, culminating in a weekend of keynotes, seminars 
and networking. These will be announced soon! Delegates who have already booked a place will be the first 
to hear about them and book their sessions. 

Book soon to avoid missing out on our or early bird discount which ends 31 October 2020. 

Find out full details and book here  
 
How can we encourage teachers from our area to attend? Should we offer some financial support? 
 
Some SACREs subsidise a number of teachers to attend and then share what they have learnt with other 
local teachers. Is this something that our SACRE would be able to do? 

 
 
Stephen Pett 
NATRE/RE Today 

Page 16

http://www.natre.org.uk/about-natre/free-resources-for-you-and-your-pupils/
https://www.natre.org.uk/courses-events/strictlyRE-2021/

	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes
	4 Syllabus launch and encouraging schools to register for access to syllabus
	7 National RE Update

	Full Names: 
	School Name: 
	School Address: 
	Telephone: 
	Email address: 
	Invoice Credit Card billing addressRow1: 
	Invoice Credit Card billing addressRow2: 
	Invoice Credit Card billing addressRow3: 
	PostcodeRow1: 
	Card No Row1: 
	Card No Row2: 
	Expiry Date_2: 
	Card No Row3: 
	Card No Row 4: 
	Start Date_2: 
	Security code: 
	Issue no Switch_2: 
	Signature: 
	Date: 
	Postcode: 
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Off


